

To:

Participating Members, North Prairie Regional Water District

From:

Monte L. Rogneby, Counsel for North Prairie Regional Water District

Date:

April 12, 2024

Re:

Proposed Bylaw Amendments

INTRODUCTION.

At the request of the Board of Directors of the North Prairie Regional Water District, the Vogel Law Firm prepared proposed amendments to the District's Bylaws. The proposed amendments were prepared based on discussions with the Board of Directors; the District's Manager and based on our experience assisting other clients update similar bylaws. Additionally, the Board also considered a recommendation from the District's Manager to make changes to the District's map which is used for electing directors.

The Board of Directors at a meeting held on March 21, 2024, approved the proposed Bylaw and district map changes; and adopted a resolution recommending the Members of the District adopt the proposed changes at the 2024 Annual Meeting which will be held on June 4, 2024.

AMENDMENT PROCESS.

The District's Bylaws and map may be amended by a majority vote of Members at any regular or special meeting of the District (North Prairie Regional Water District By-Laws (NPRWD By-Laws), Section 14.1) Accordingly, if a majority of members vote "yes" on the resolution presented by the Board at the 2024 Annual Meeting, the District's Bylaws and map will be amended as proposed by the Board.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS:

The proposed amendments can be summarized as follows:

• **UPDATING**

Some of the proposed changes to the Bylaws are cosmetic to update and clarify the Bylaws without changing the substance or meaning. These changes include changes to add capitalization and to clarify existing provisions. These proposed changes appear throughout the Bylaws.

• EXPANDED PARTICIPATION

The Board recommends the members adopt changes to the Bylaws to allow participation in the annual meeting and any special meetings virtually and/or by mail or electronic ballot, as allowed by the Board.

In our experience, the trend is less attendance at community meetings and therefore we recommend the District authorize the use of alternate means for members to participate, including through the use of absentee ballots — mail or electronic. The Board proposes adding a new Section 7.6 which would allow the Board to authorize participation by members via a virtual meeting (Zoom or other electronic means) or to allow participation by absentee votes. A member is only allowed, however, to vote once — either by mail or in person. The proposed change would not authorize the Board to discontinue the annual meeting or limit the members' right to call a special meeting of members. It would allow greater participation in voting at the annual meeting.

• CONSENSUS PROTECTION

The Board proposed two changes to protect the District from governing changes not supported by a consensus of members.

The Board proposes a new quorum requirement of five percent of the Participating Members, in person, virtual, or by absentee ballot, for the transaction of business at the annual meeting or special meeting. (See Section 7.3.) Additionally, the Board proposes a new Section 7.5 which requires that any motion for consideration at a meeting of Participating Members be delivered to the Board at least 30 days in advance of the meeting, so all members may be given advance notice of the motion before it is considered.

The proposed changes are designed to require the participation of at least five percent of the members before a meeting may be held and to require notice of at least 30 days prior to consideration of any motion by the members.

These provisions do not eliminate or diminish the authority of the members. They do, however, help ensure a consensus of opinion of the Members before changes are made to the operations of the District.

AUTHORITY OF THE BOARD TO POLICE ITSELF

The Board proposes a new Section 9.6 which would authorize the Board to remove a director for serious misconduct, physical or mental impairment, and/or chronic absences from meetings of the Board. The members retain their right to remove a director by filing a removal petition.

We believe it is prudent for the Board to have authority to police itself and to remove a director who is unwilling or unable to fulfill his or her Board duties. Although the Bylaws allow for removal by member petition, the cost and time required to schedule and hold a meeting of members makes the

process unduly burdensome and expensive. We recommend that the members provide the Board with authority to remove a director who is failing to fulfill his or her duties.

• REVISED MAP

The Board recommends changes to the District's map to modify the sub-districts used for Board representation. The proposed changes establish clear geographical boundaries using township boundaries. The proposed changes also create sub-districts with more balanced distribution of members.

CONCLUSION

The Board urges the Members to adopt the proposed Bylaw and map changes as proposed at the Annual Meeting on June 4, 2024.

The NPRWD Board of Directors are asking for your support and for your YES Vote at the Annual Meeting. Please come and support your Water District and vote YES. Thank you in advance and see you June 4th!

NORTH PRAIRIE REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT

BY-LAWS (amended May 2021)

ARTICLE I GENERAL PURPOSES

Section 1.1: The purpose for which this District is formed is a result of the merger of North Prairie Rural Water District and North Central Regional Water District, and to provide water to its participating member_Members located within the District. The powers which the District may exercise are set forth in Chapter 61-35 of the North Dakota Century Code.

ARTICLE II NAME AND LOCATION

Section 2.1: The name of the District is: North Prairie Regional Water District.

Section 2.2: The principal office of this District is located at 3811 Burdick Expressway East, Minot, North Dakota 58701.

ARTICLE III SEAL

No seal shall be required for the District.

ARTICLE IV FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the District is the calendar year.

ARTICLE V MEMBERS

Section 5.1: Member means an owner of real property that is located within the District, the tenant of real property, or another person acting for the owner with the owner's written consent. Any city having a water distribution system may become a M-member of the District.

Section 5.2: Benefit Uunit means the fee each mMember pays for each service that is planned to be connected to the water system for the privilege of using the District's facilities, in accordance with Chapter 61-35 of the North Dakota Century Code.

Section 5.3: Participating mMember means a Memember who has subscribed to and paid the established fee for at least one benefit unitBenefit Unit in the District. Participating memberMembership shall not be denied because of the applicant's race, color, creed or national origin. Participating memberMembership may be denied if, in the discretion of the Board of Directors, the system lacks sufficient capacity to provide a long-term, reliable water supply to existing Participating Membersthe capacity of the District's water system is exhausted by the needs of its existing participating members, or the proposed use of the applicant would interfere with the existing uses previously authorized by the Beoard of Delirectors. All users of North Prairie Rural Water District

and North Central Regional Water District will become Pparticipating memberMembers upon the formation of the District without payment of any additional fee. Any city or other entity that is a Pparticipating memberMember may designate a natural person as its representativeor represent them as a participating member. In the absence of a designation, the auditor of a city and the president of a corporation shall be considered the representative. The board of directorsBoard of Directors is authorized to require each applicant to enter into a Pparticipating memberMember agreement which is a Water Users Agreement that contains the principles and provisions set forth in the District's rules & regulations and policies, as may be adopted from time to time, and these bylaws.

- 1. Before a <u>Pparticipating memberMember</u>ship is extended to one or more persons claiming an interest in the property to be served, the District shall first attempt to obtain the application for <u>Pparticipating memberMember</u>ship from the owner of the property.
- 2. Where Pparticipating memberMembership is granted to one or more persons other than the owner of the property, the District, as a condition to acceptance of the Pparticipating memberMembership, may require the applicant for the Pparticipating memberMembership to post such collateral or bond as the director Directors determine necessary to fully protect the District from any additional risk that may be by reason of the applicant's lack of legal ownership.

Section 5.4: Each <u>Pparticipating-memberMember</u> shall have one vote for each <u>benefit unitBenefit Unit</u> subscribed to. Each <u>benefit unitBenefit Unit</u> shall represent one (1) vote. When more than one person holds an interest in a property served, the vote shall be exercised by the person in whose name the <u>benefit unitBenefit Unit</u> is registered or by the person the several owners may designate, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast with respect to any <u>benefit unitBenefit Unit</u>.

Section 5.5: Participating <u>memberMember</u>ship shall be transferable, but the transfer will be effective only when noted on the books of the District. The transfer will be made only to a person who is qualified to be a <u>Pparticipating memberMember</u> of the District under these bylaws. A <u>Pparticipating memberMember</u> will transfer his <u>memberMembership</u> in the District to his successor-in-interest whenever he disposes of his interest in the property. The District office, upon request, will note of the transfer upon the records of the District.

Section 5.6: When a <u>Prarticipating-memberMember</u>ship in the District is not transferred, it shall terminate upon the disposition or other termination of the <u>memberMember</u>'s interest in the property. Participating-<u>memberMember</u>ships also may be terminated by action of the <u>board of directorsBoard of Directors</u> where the use of the property is changed so as to materially increase the amount of water consumed to the prejudice of other existing <u>memberMember</u>s or to the prejudice of the orderly operation of the system.

Section 5.7: The termination of the <u>Pparticipating_memberMember</u>ship of any <u>memberMember</u>shall not disqualify subsequent <u>Pparticipating_memberMember</u>ship to any other person who has or obtains an interest in the property of the terminated <u>Pparticipating_memberMember</u> and who otherwise meets the requirements of these bylaws.

Section 5.8: In the event a <u>P</u>participating <u>memberMember</u>'s property interest is divested other than by voluntary means, the <u>P</u>participating <u>memberMember</u>ship will pass to the trustee, receiver, personal representative, or the like, who will be entitled either in person or through a designated representative,

representative, to exercise all the rights incident to the <u>Pparticipating-memberMember</u>ship. The trustee, receiver, personal representative, or the like, may terminate the <u>Pparticipating memberMember</u>ship by written notice to the effect delivered or mailed to the District office. Upon the final disposition of the property rights, the new or replaced owner shall make application for a <u>Pparticipating-memberMember</u>ship as provided in Section 5.3.

Section 5.9: Upon the transfer of a <u>Pparticipating-memberMembership</u>, the District will seek to collect all charges from the individual who incurred the charges. The District may seek to assess the property itself as if a judgment lien had been duly perfected against the property. In the event the charges or assessment are not collected from the individual who incurred them on the property, the District will look to the successor-in-interest for payment of any past due amounts before the <u>Pparticipating-memberMembership</u> is transferred.

ARTICLE VI MEMBERSHIP CERTIFICATES

Section 6.1: This District shall not issue <u>P</u>participating <u>memberMember</u> certificates. Memberships shall be evidenced by entry upon the books and records of the District.

ARTICLE VII MEETING OF MEMBERS

Section 7.1: The Aannual Mmeeting of the Pparticipating-memberMembers of the District will be held at a location and time designated by the board of directorsBoard of Directors. Written notice of the time and place of the meeting shall be sent to all Pparticipating memberMembers of record by US mail, directed to the address shown upon the records and books of the District, not less than ten (10) nor more than thirty (30) days before the meeting. Notice of the Aannual Mmeeting must also be posted on the website for the District and published in the official newspaper of each county served by the District not less than ten (10) nor more than thirty (30) days before the meeting. No failure or irregularity of notice of any Aannual Mmeeting shall affect any proceedings taken at the meeting.

Section 7.2: Special meetings of the Pparticipating-memberMembers may be called at any time by the action of the board of directorsBoard of Directors. Such meetings must be called whenever a petition requesting a special meeting signed by at least five percent (5%) of the Pparticipating memberMembers is presented to the District office or the board of directorsBoard of Directors. The purpose of every special meeting shall be stated in the notice or the petition and no business shall be transacted at the special meeting except as specified in the notice. Notice of special meetings of Pparticipating-memberMembers of the District shall be given by notice, mailed by US mail, to each Pparticipating-memberMember of record, directed to the address shown upon the books and records of the District, not less than ten (10) nor more than thirty (30) days prior to the special meeting. The notice shall state the nature, time, place, and purpose of the meeting. Notice of the special meeting must also be published in the official newspaper of each county served by the District not less than ten (10) nor more than thirty (30) days before the meeting. No failure or irregularity of notice of any special meeting, regularly held, shall affect any proceedings taken at the meeting.

Section 7.3: The in-person or virtual presence of at least five (5) percent of the Participating Members constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business at an Annual or Special Meeting of Participating Members. Virtual presence, if allowed by the Board of Directors, must consist of both

audio and video of the meeting and the Participating Member. If less than a quorum is present at any meeting, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting to a date not more than 45 days following the date of the Participating Member Meeting. The presence at an annual or special meeting of participating members entitled to east their own vote shall constitute a quorum.

Section 7.3: Directors of this District shall be elected at the annual meeting Annual Meeting of the Pparticipating member Members as provided under these bylaws.

Section 7.4: The order of business at the regular annual meeting Annual Meeting and so far as possible at all other meetings shall comply with Robert's Rules of Order. The regular annual meeting Annual Meeting agenda shall be:

- 1. Call to order
- 2. Reading and action on any unapproved minutes
- 3. Reports of officers and committees
- 4. Election of director Directors
- 5. Appointment of nomination committee
- 6. Unfinished business
- 7. New business
- 8. Adjournment

<u>Section 7.5</u>: Unless otherwise determined by the Board before any Annual Meeting or Special Member Meeting, Participating Members may consider, vote, or act only upon matters that:

- 1. the Participating Members are required to consider, vote, or act on under these bylaws and applicable law;
 - 2. these bylaws expressly grant Participating Members the right to vote; and
 - 3. Member motions that have been delivered to the Board of Directors at least 30 days in advance of the date of the Meeting in which the vote has been requested.

Section 7.6: Absentee Ballots: Mail or electronic absentee ballots may be accepted and may be counted towards a quorum at an annual or special meeting of Participating Members but only as specifically –authorized by the Board of Directors. When so authorized by the Board of Directors, absentee ballots shall be valid and entitled to the same force and effect as a vote in person if the Participating Member has been previously notified in writing of the exact motion,—or resolution, or election contest upon which the vote is taken. The Board of Directors shall determine the procedure for absentee voting, if any, for each meeting. A Participating Member who submits an absentee vote in accordance with this provision shall not be entitled to cast an additional vote on the same motion, resolution, or election contest should such Participating Member appear in person at the applicable meeting, and, in the event of such appearance in person, such Participating Member shall notify the District at such meeting that such Participating Member previously submitted an absentee vote so that such Participating Member will not be double-counted in calculating the number of votes cast on, or the presence of a quorum with respect to, the applicable motion, resolution, or election contest.

Formatted: Font: Italic

ARTICLE VIII NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Section 8.1: Nominations of Directors: At each Annual Mmeeting of the Pparticipating memberMembers, the presiding officer shall appoint a nominations committee consisting of not less than three (3) Pparticipating_memberMembers, one of which can be a Board memberMember who is not up for election at the next Annual Mmeeting of the District. The nominations committee shall serve until the next annual meetingAnnual Meeting. The nominations committee shall prepare and provide to the District office, at least thirty (30)forty-five (45) days before the next annual meetingAnnual Meeting of the Pparticipating_memberMembers, a list of nominations for directorDirectors. The nominations committee shall accept letters of interest from memberMembers of the boardBoard and confirm in writing from all nominees their interest and willingness to accept positions on the board of directorsBoard of Directors. MemberMembers of the nominations committee are not excluded from being nominated for any position. All nominees for directorDirectors must be a Pparticipating_memberMember, reside in the District's boundaries, and reside in the district for which the Defirector nomination applies unless it is the at-large position. Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, failure to comply with any of the provisions of this section shall not affect the validity of any election of directorDirectors.

Section 8.2: Election of DirectorDirectors: Election of directorDirectors, from the nominations committee list of nominees, shall be by printed ballot that will be distributed to each Pparticipating memberMember in attendance and entitled to vote in person or absentee as allowed by the Board of Directors as otherwise set forth in the bylaws. A Pparticipating memberMember shall have one vote as provided in Section 5.4 of these bylaws. At the meeting of the Pparticipating memberMembers where an election of one or more directorDirectors will occur, the presiding officer shall appoint an election boardBoard to consist of three (3) Pparticipating memberMembers who shall, at the meeting only, preside over the distribution, collection, counting, and tally of ballots. In the event of a tie vote, the election shall be determined by lot in such manner as shall be selected or determined by the election boardBoard.

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

ARTICLE IX DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 9.1: The board of directorsBoard of Directors of the District shall consist of seven (7) members, one (1) director from each of the six (6) districts set forth in Exhibit A, and one (1) at-large director Director. Each directorDirector must be a Pparticipating member Member of the District. Each directorDirector must maintain his or her their primary residencereside in the district he/she represents, with the exception of the at-large directorDirector who may reside anywhere in the District. Directors The initial board of directors shall consist of seven (7) directors, previously elected by North Prairie Rural Water District, who shall continue to serve until their successors are elected

and have qualified. The <u>D</u>directors shall be divided into classes according to the existing remaining terms of the previously elected <u>D</u>directors of North Prairie Rural Water District. Two (2) <u>D</u>directors shall continue to serve for a term of one year; two (2) <u>D</u>directors for a term of two years; and three (3) <u>D</u>directors for a term of three years. At each <u>annual meeting Annual Meeting</u>, the <u>P</u>participating <u>memberMembers</u> shall elect for a term of three years the number of <u>director Directors</u> whose terms of office have expired. Each <u>director Director</u> shall hold office for the term for which he/she is elected and until his/her successor shall have been elected and qualified. <u>Upon election, each Director will acknowledge and sign the North Prairie Regional Water District Code of Conduct as adopted by the <u>Board of Directors</u>.</u>

Section 9.2: The board of directors Board of Directors shall hold a reorganizational meeting at the first Board meeting following the annual meeting Annual Meeting of Pparticipating-member Members and shall elect officers consisting of an president, vice-president, secretary and treasurer, each of whom shall hold office until the next annual meeting Annual Meeting of pparticipating member Members and until the election and qualification of his/her successor unless sooner removed by death, resignation or for cause. The positions of president and vice-president must be filled with sitting Directors. Pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 10-15-29. The elected positions of secretary and treasurer may be filled by a Director, District staff, or a third party.

Section 9.3: If the position of a directorDirector, or the office held by any directorDirector becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, retirement, disqualification or otherwise, a majority of the remaining directorDirectors, though less than a quorum shall by majority vote, choose a successor membermember of the boardBoard of directorDirectors or officer for the duration of the replaced directorDirectors' term.

Section 9.4: A majority of the boardBoard of directorDirectors shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the boardBoard. The affirmative vote of the majority of the directorDirectors at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the boardBoard.

Section 9.5: Each member of the boardBoard of director shall receive compensation as determined by the boardBoard of director sand actual mileage expense at the current rate prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service as reimbursement for expenses for each of the Board of Delirector meetings actually attended. In addition, director shall receive per diem and lodging for attendance at other meetings while on business for the District according to District policies for its employees.

Section 9.6: A Director's service on the Board may be terminated prior to the expiration of the Director's term as a consequence of any one or more of the following:

(A) Resignation. A Director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the President.

(B) Board Removal. If a Director materially breaches any duty established in Article X or the Code of Conduct, as applicable to the Board, or is guilty of a serious dereliction of duty, becomes physically or mentally impaired in a manner that compromises the ability of the Director to carry out his or her duties and responsibilities as a Director, or is not physically present at the place of the regularly scheduled meeting more than three times during any

calendar year, the Director may be removed by the Board in the Board's discretion, but only after notice and an opportunity to be heard. The requirement of Board Member's physical presence may be waived by the Board.

filing charges in writing with the District office, together with a petition signed by at least fifteen percent (15%) of the certified Pparticipating Mmembers requesting the removal of the Delirector for the reasons contained in the written charges. The Delirector against whom the charges have been brought shall be informed in writing of the charges at least thirty-one (31) days prior to the Aannual or Sepecial meeting at which the charges are to be heard in person or by counsel and to present evidence in respect to the charges; and the person or persons bringing the charges against him/her shall have the same opportunity. If no Aannual Mmeeting is to be held within 31days of the filing of charges, a Sepecial Mmeeting of the members shall be called to consider the charges according to Article VII of these Bylaws. The question of removal of the Delirector shall be voted upon at the next Aannual or Sepecial meeting of the members and any vacancy created by the removal may be filled by Beoard of Delirectors according to this Article IX.

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font:

ARTICLE X DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

Section 10.1: The board of directorsBoard of Directors, subject to restriction of law, these bylaws, and boardBoard policies and shall exercise all of the powers of the District without prejudice to or limitation upon their general powers. It is hereby expressly provided that the board of directorsBoard of Directors shall have, and are hereby given; full power and authority in respect to the matters as hereinafter set forth to be exercised by resolution duly adopted by the boardBoard. These powers shall be in addition or supplemental to the powers granted in Chapter 61-35 of the North Dakota Century Code and are to:

- Select and appoint the Manager and any agents or consultants of the District, remove
 the Manager and any agents or consultants of the District, prescribe their duties and
 designate their powers as may not be inconsistent with these bylaws, fix their
 compensation, and pay for faithful services.
- 2. Borrow from any authorized source, money, goods or services and make and issue notes and other negotiable or non-negotiable instruments evidencing indebtedness of the District, make and issue mortgages, deeds of trust, pledge of revenue, trust agreements, security agreements and financing statements, and other instruments evidencing a security interest in the assets of the District, and do every act and thing necessary to effectuate the same.
- Order, at least once a year, an audit of the books and accounts of the District by a certified public accountant.
- 4. Fix and alter the charges to be paid for each benefit unitBenefit Unit by Pparticipating memberMembers for services rendered by the District to the Pparticipating memberMember, including connection fees where such are deemed to be necessary by the directorDirectors, fix and alter the method of billing, time of payment and manner of connection. The beardBoard may establish one or more classes of Pparticipating

- memberMembers or benefit unitBenefit Units. All charges shall be uniform and non-discriminatory within each class of Pparticipating memberMembers or benefit unitBenefit Units.
- 5. Levy assessments and late payment penalties against the <u>Pparticipating memberMembers</u> of the District and enforce collection of such assessments by the suspension of water services or other legal methods.
- 6. Select one or more federally insured financial institutions to act as depositories of the funds of the District and determine the manner of receiving, depositing, and disbursing the funds of the District and the form of checks and the person or persons by whom the same shall be signed, with the power to change banks and the persons or persons signing checks.
- Require all officers, agents and employees charged with responsibility for the custody
 of any of the funds of the District to give adequate bonds, the cost of which is to be
 paid by the District.

ARTICLE XI DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 11.1: Duties of President. The president shall preside over all meetings of the District and the board of directorsBoard of Directors, call special meetings of the board of directorsBoard of Directors, set agendas for all meetings, perform all acts and duties usually performed by an executive and presiding officer and sign all papers of the District as he/she may be authorized or directed to sign by the board of directorsBoard of Directors. The board of directorsBoard of Directors, by resolution, may authorize a person other than the president to sign any or all checks, contracts, and other instruments on behalf of the District. The president shall perform other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directorsBoard of Directors.

Section 11.2: Duties of Vice-President. In the absence or disability of the president, the vice-president shall perform the duties of the president. In the case of death, resignation or disability of the president, the board of directorsBoard of Directors may declare the office vacant and elect his or her successor. The vice-president shall perform other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directorsBoard of Directors.

Section 11.3: Duties of the Secretary. The secretary shall cause a complete record of all meetings of the District and of the board of directorsBoard of Directors to be made and shall have general charge and supervision of the books and records of the District and attest the president's signature on all documents. The secretary is authorized to authenticate the District's records. The secretary may delegate or assign the Secretary's duties to District staff or other parties whose duties are subject to oversight by the secretary.

Section 11.4: Duties of the Treasurer. The treasurer shall have charge and custody of all funds and securities, receive and give receipts for monies due and payable, deposit all such monies in depositories as shall be selected, and in general perform all duties incident to the office of treasurer.

ARTICLE XII RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF PARTICIPATING MEMBERS

Section 12.1: The District shall furnish, subject to the limitation set out in rules and regulations, and these bylaws and those hereinafter provided for, such quantity of water as the Pparticipating memberMember may desire in connection with his/her property as described in a water users agreement required by the District.

Section 12.2: The Pparticipating member Member will grant the District, its successors or assigns, a perpetual easement in, over, under, and upon their property with the right to construct, erect, install, and lay pipelines and thereafter use, operate, inspect, repair, maintain, replace or remove, together with the right of ingress and egress over adjacent land for the purpose of installing and maintaining water pipelines and appurtenant facilities. At the Districts discretion, such easement may provide for exclusivity.

Section 12.3: The District shall not be liable for damages of any kind whatsoever resulting from water or the use of water on Pparticipating-memberMember's premises or property unless such damage results directly from negligence on the part of the District. The District shall not be responsible for negligence of third persons or forces beyond the control of the District resulting in any interruption of service, nor shall the District be liable for damage of any kind whatsoever resulting from snow melt or rain water run-off, or act of God.

Section 12.4: The District does not have the ability to provide sufficient water or pressure to be relied upon by the participating user for fire protection purposes and the District shall not be liable for the failure of the water system or the District to provide pressure to the Peparticipating-memberMembers for fire protection purposes.

ARTICLE XIII RULES AND REGULATIONS

Section 13.1: The board of directors Board of Directors shall have the authority to adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of the business affairs of the District and to amend such rules and regulations as long as the rules and regulations are not contrary to state or federal law or regulation or the bylaws of the District. The District shall provide a copy of the rules and regulations to each Pparticipating-memberMember.

ARTICLE XIV AMENDMENTS

Section 14.1: These bylaws may be repealed or amended by a vote of a majority of the Pparticipating memberMember spresent at any regular meeting of the District or at any special meeting of the District called for that purpose. So long as indebtedness is held by or guaranteed by USDA Rural Utilities Service and/or other lending agencies or their successors or assigns, the Pparticipating memberMember shall not have the power to change the purposes of the District so as to decrease its rights and powers under the laws of this state, or to waive any requirements of bond or other provision for the safety and security of the property and funds of the District or its participating users, or so to amend the bylaws as to effect a fundamental change in the policies of the District without the prior

approval of the USDA Rural Utilities Service and/or other lending agencies, their successors or assigns, in writing.

ARTICLE XV ASSUMPTION OF LIABILITIES

Section 15.1: The District assumes and agrees to pay all debts, obligations and liabilities to its predecessor organizations, North Prairie Rural Water District and North Central Regional Water District, in the same manner as if the District had originally incurred the debt, obligation or liability.

ARTICLE XVI DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY REIMBURSEMENT

Section 16.1: Each officer, director Director, staff member or person serving on a committee of the District shall be indemnified by the District against all costs and expenses actually and necessarily incurred by him or her in connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceedings in which he or she is made a party by reason of being or having been a director Director, officer, staff member or committee representative of the District, whether or not he or she continues to be such at the time of incurring the cost or expense, except in relation to matters as to which he or she shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceedings to be liable for gross negligence or intentional misconduct in the performance of his or her duties as such officer, director Director, staff member or committee representative. The right of indemnification in this section shall not be exclusive of other rights to which any officer, director Director, staff member or committee representative shall be entitled as a matter of law. The foregoing shall not preclude the collection of insurance benefits that may be available.

DATED:	_
ATTEST:	
Secretary	President

	<u>a</u>	RSON 11	MEYER P		ELVERUM 154N72W	ROSEDALE.	ALEXANT 152N721	HAGEL 151N721	WELLS 150N721	FORWAR 149N721	H RUS
			CHRISTENSON 1	TUSCARORACICO 155N73W	BALTA EL	GIRARD: RO	E HILLSIDE 152N73W	TRUMAN 161N73W [3]	HILLSDALE 150N73W	WESTERN 149N73W	PONY GULGH
<u>x</u>	ON EAST BARTON	EY WALSH	NESS 6N74W	JEFFERSON TUS	SANDALE 154N74W		ELOPE LA	WHITE 151N74W	MARTIN 150N74W	BERLIN 149N74W	FAIRVIEW 148N74W
B	AL. BARTON 5W 158N74W	DEWEY 157N74W	BERWICK 156N75W 16	GORMAN JEF	UNORGAN SA IZED SA 154N75W 16	ROUND LAKE 153N75W 15	SCHILLERAN1 152N74W	NAMOOSE 151N75W	EORGETOWN 150N75W	(3)	LE SCHILLER 148N75W
	NIZE J NORMAL	VIZE 3W	NEWPORT BE	UNORGAN IZED GC 155N76W 15	UNORGANIZED IZE	GEORGE . LA	STREGE 152N76W	SPRING GROVE 151N75W 161N76W	ROSEN GE FIELD 150N76W	GRANVILLE 149N76W	LINCOLN DALE
RIVER 77W 77W alber 351 W title	Y UNORGANIZE W 158N76W	N 157N76W	DENBIGH NET		VILLARD UNOR	KARLSRUHE 153N77W LAKE GEORGE 153N76W	BALFOUR 152N77W II	LAND SP 151N77W	STRASSBURG 150N77W	HIGHLAND 0	HARRIS 148N77W
MOUSE 159N	BAN7	E WAGAR 157N77W	RIGA DEN 156N78W 156	UNORGAN IZED UNORGANIZ 15SN78WILDINSSN77W		AKE HESTER 153N	ODIN 152N78W	COTTON WOOD LAKE 151N78W	DOGDEN ST 150N78W	BYERSVILLE H 149N78W	T HOLMES
MEADOW.	LAYTON 158N78W	SGILMORE 157N78W	EGG CREEK RI 156N79W (1)	GRANVILLE IZED			VOLTAIRE 152N79W	OLIVIA V	BUTTE C	AURENA: BY	MEDICINE HAT
DEEP RIVER	LITTLE ÓBEP 158N79W	SALINE 157N79W			H HENDRICKSON	A LEBANON 0W 153N79W	BROWN V	BJORNSON 161N80W	OTIS 150N80W	HORSE A SHOE VALLEY 149080W	
PRATT 159N80W	GRILLEY 158N80W	DEERING 157N80W	KOTTKE AND VALLEY 1W 156N80W	EY , JNORWICH	NORTH IN 154N80W	ER VELVA 153N80W	BRILLIAN 152N81W. 11	GREELY BJI	ANDREWS 150N81W 15	GREATSTONE SH	UNORGANIZE 148N81W
ot	PRESCOTT 158N81W	MARGARET 157N81W	EY MARYLAND W 156N81W	SE SURREY W 155N81W	E NEW PRAIRIE	SAWYER 153NB1W	NEWMAN BE 152N82W 15	OTA FLAT GI	POPLAR AN	SNAKE CREEK GRE	MALCOM U
of Minot	ENSIGN 158N82W	TATMAN 157N82W	MCKINLEY 166N82W	Ned NEDROSE 155N82W	SUNDRE 154N82W	153N82W	GASMAN NEI	RUSHVILLE 1074		ш	SNOW 148N83W
City	VAN BUREN 158N83W	WATERFORDII	EUREKA 156N83W	HARRISON 155N83W	AFTON 154NB3W	FREEDOM 153N83W		SLAKE RUSH 84W 151N 5D	150 150	UNO 148	UNORGANIZED 148N84W
LOCKWOOD 159N84W	MUSKEGO V/ 158N84W	ST MARY 1/2	KIRKELIE 156N84W	DES LACS BURLINGTO 155N85W 155N84W	154N84W	TORNING 153N84W	SW 152N84W	SPRING 151N	SW. 150N84W	NIZED MCGINNIS SW 149N84W	ST MARY UNG
CALLAHAN LO	PLAIN MI 158N85W 11	MAYLAND STATEMENT STATEMEN	FOXHOLM 156N85W		TOLGEN ROLLING GREEN 154N86W 154N85W.	VANG 163NB5W	8WZ 152N85W	R CAMERON.	IIL DOUGLAS	MORGANIZED 149N85W	NORGANIZED ST
IVANHOE CA	IVANHOE 15	CARPIO MA 157N86W. 15	BERTHOLD 156N86W	MANDAN 155N86W	TOLGEN R	LINTON 153N86W	W. 152N86W ^Z	NWOOD RYDER N87W 151N86W	W 150N86W	UNORGAN IZED W 149N86W	BLACK NOF WATER 148N87W
GREENBUSH IVA 159N87W 150	A A	REE CA 157/187W 157	PASSPORT 156N87W	EVERGREEN 155N87W	SHEALY 164N87W	LUND 153N87W	OCCLIEN A 15 N87W	HIDDE NW	LLE GATE V 150NBTW	ER ROSEGLEN	UNORGANIZEU BLY 148N88W WA
BADEN' GREE 159N88W 1591	A 15 10 15 1		EGAN 156NBBW	KICKAPOO E 155N88W	OSLOE 154N88W	SPRING COULEE 153N88W	PLAZA 15ZN88W		AMUNDSVILLE 150N88W	DEEP WATER 149N88W	UNOR 148
	OOT LOWLAND 158N88W	OND STAVE 9W 15788W	IO MCGAHAN	MCALMOND P	OAKLAND 154N89W	SHELL SPR 153N89W	MODEL P. 452N89W	BANNER 151N89W	3		W (Mol
SPENCER 159N89W	SROWFOOT 158N89W	REDMOND 157N89W	(E)	>	0.5	4 >	SHALL SN90W	RTILE		GANIZED	ZED

BOARD APPROVED EXHIBIT A For By-Law Ratification

1D DREVECKY = BLACK BORDER
2D SHANNON = BLUE BORDER
3D LOFTESNES = RED BORDER
4D FLATEN = PINK BORDER
5D KRUEGER = ORANGE BORDER
6D HANSON = GREEN BORDER
AT LARGE HENDRICKSON
DISTRICT BOUNDARY-BLUE DASHED